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          1  LANDMARKS, PUBLIC SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Welcome to the

          3  Landmarks, Public Siting and Maritime Uses

          4  Subcommittee of the Land Use Committee. We're joined

          5  today by Council Members John Liu, Council Member

          6  Annabel Palma, Council Member Charles Barron,

          7  Melinda Katz, Chair of the Land Use Committee,

          8  Council Member Maria del Carmen Arroyo and Council

          9  Member Comrie.

         10                 We're going to begin today with the

         11  public hearing on the Gregorio Luperon High School,

         12  which is Land Use Item Number 124, and we have a few

         13  witnesses, Gregory Shaw from the School Construction

         14  Authority and Kenrick Ou from the School

         15  Construction Authority, and Linda Corcoran from the

         16  School Construction Authority, all here to speak in

         17  favor.

         18                 This item is in Council Member

         19  Martinez's district, and it's my understanding that

         20  Council Member Martinez is in favor.

         21                 Please proceed.

         22                 MR. SHAW: Thank you. My name is

         23  Gregory Shaw. I'm the Principal Attorney for Real

         24  Estate for the New York City School Construction

         25  Authority, and to my immediate right is Linda
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          2  Corcoran, who is Director for Real Estate for the

          3  Division of School Facilities, for the New York City

          4  Department of Education. And to my left is Kenrick

          5  Ou, Manager for Site Acquisitions for the Legal

          6  Department in the School Construction Authority.

          7                 Thank you very much for inviting us

          8  today to talk about this very important project.

          9                 Specifically the New York City School

         10  Construction Authority has undertaken its site

         11  selection process for the proposed Gregorio Luperon

         12  High School located in Manhattan on Tax Block 2123,

         13  Lot 45, in the northwest corner of Amsterdam Avenue

         14  and West 165th Street. It is in DOE Region Number

         15  10, Community School District Number 6, also in

         16  Manhattan Community Board No. 12.

         17                 The project site is a City-owned

         18  property under the control, care, custody and

         19  control of the New York City Department of

         20  Education. The City of New York acquired this

         21  property back in 1973 for public school use, and it

         22  currently contains a two-story temporary building

         23  that houses DOE offices. That temporary building

         24  will be demolished to make way for the new school.

         25                 Those offices will be relocated from
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          2  the site and the temporary structure will be

          3  demolished. The Gregorio Luperon High School would

          4  relocate from its current lease facilities once the

          5  school is completed to the new building. And notice

          6  of filing of the site plan was published in the New

          7  York Post, in the City Record, on December 1st,

          8  2005. Manhattan Community Board No. 12 was notified

          9  on December 1st, and was asked to hold public

         10  hearings on the proposed site plan.

         11                 Community Board No. 12 conducted a

         12  public hearing on the site plan on December 19th,

         13  2005, and subsequently sent comments in support of

         14  the proposed site.

         15                 The City Planning Commission was also

         16  notified on December 1st, 2005, and it subsequently

         17  recommended in favor of the proposed site. The

         18  Authority submitted this site plan to the City

         19  Council and the Mayor on April 27th, 2006 and we

         20  know ask this Committee, as well as the City

         21  Council, to vote in favor of the site plan.

         22                 Thank you very much.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you. How

         24  big is the high school now, in its temporary

         25  location? How many seats?
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          2                 MR. SHAW: The temporary location and

          3  the leased facilities I think is approximately --

          4                 MS. CORCORAN: The leased space is

          5  undersized, so it's quite overcrowded. So it will

          6  maintain the same size.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: So, it's the same

          8  number of students but in a much better

          9  accommodations?

         10                 MS. CORCORAN: Correct.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Okay.

         12                 Do any of the other members have

         13  questions?

         14                 Anna.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: It's a high

         16  school?

         17                 MR. SHAW: Yes, it is.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Is there a

         19  capacity -- is there going to be a cap or are we

         20  going to see the same problem of overcrowdedness

         21  arise in the new school eventually?

         22                 MR. SHAW: Well, it's going to be

         23  built for 500 students, and I would imagine that's

         24  where it's going to stay.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: And the students

          3  come from which district? Are they all across the

          4  borough? How is it selected, the children that

          5  attend the high school?

          6                 MS. CORCORAN: It's not a zoned high

          7  school. It's open to admission Citywide. Mostly it's

          8  coming from Washington Heights, but it's not

          9  limited.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Okay.

         11                 Council Member Barron.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: I wasn't

         13  listening well. I just want to know, is this Miguel

         14  Martinez's district?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: It is.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: He's all right

         17  with it?

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Correct.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Okay.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Council Member

         21  Comrie.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: When you say

         23  it's an open admission high school, that means it's

         24  going to be a specialized high school?

         25                 MS. CORCORAN: My understanding is
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          2  that this school is particularly geared to students

          3  who are bilingual, Spanish and English. It's just a

          4  continuation of its current policies. I don't have

          5  the exact details of it, but it's not limited.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: So this school

          7  is already in existence?

          8                 MS. CORCORAN: Yes. Yes.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: In a temporary

         10  building?

         11                 MS. CORCORAN: It's been in existence

         12  for many years in a leased building, and the lease

         13  is really not a great space and it's also not big

         14  enough. There's a temporary building on the site

         15  now, which holds Department of Ed Offices. Those

         16  will be relocated. We'll knock down the temporary

         17  building and then we'll build the new school.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: All right. I

         19  got that part, I was just interested in what the

         20  percentages were of people from the community,

         21  versus people from other parts of the Borough. But

         22  you're saying it's a bilingual school, then clearly

         23  the focus point would be people from bilingual parts

         24  of Manhattan, so that pretty much answers my

         25  question.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 Thank you, Madam.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: How much is it

          5  costing to build the new building, out of curiosity?

          6                 MR. SHAW: We have no order. The

          7  contract, the design is not complete, so I would not

          8  know. But generally speaking our buildings are

          9  costing around 3.25, 3.50 a square foot.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Any other

         11  questions from the Committee?

         12                 Thank you very much.

         13                 MR. SHAW: Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Seeing nobody

         15  else here to testify on this item, this public

         16  hearing is closed.

         17                 And now we're going to open a public

         18  hearing on Land Use Item No. 118, OEM Warehouse.

         19                 Welcome Commissioner Bruno.

         20                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Please proceed.

         22                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: Okay. I'm Joseph

         23  Bruno, I'm the Commissioner of the New York City

         24  Office of Emergency Management.

         25                 Good morning, Chair Lappin, and
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          2  members of the Subcommittee on Landmarks, Public

          3  Siting and Maritime Uses.

          4                 I appreciate the opportunity to

          5  present our ULURP application for warehouse space at

          6  930 Flushing Avenue in the Bushwick section of

          7  Brooklyn. OEM, as you know, is a small City agency

          8  with a big mission, and a big part of that mission

          9  is preparedness. This warehouse is necessary to the

         10  City's preparedness, as I hope to make apparent to

         11  you in my testimony today.

         12                 The reason we need this warehouse is

         13  twofold: First, events have reminded us that being

         14  prepared involves more than planning. It requires

         15  the stocking of appropriate supplies, equipment and

         16  vehicle resources to implement action plans in the

         17  midst of an emergency.

         18                 As a result, we have assembled a

         19  store of logistical supplies that are used for the

         20  City's response and recovery efforts. We need the

         21  warehouse to store and maintain these critical

         22  resources.

         23                 The second function of our warehouse

         24  is to house the Urban Search and Rescue Team, which

         25  we call US&R. US&R is a federal entity that is
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          2  sponsored by OEM and consists of over 200 of the

          3  most highly-trained New York City firefighters,

          4  police officers and emergency responders.

          5                 They are deployed throughout the

          6  country to respond to large scale disasters. Their

          7  requirement is that they must be able to deploy

          8  within six hours of activation, so when they get

          9  their orders, they muster at our warehouse, load up

         10  their supplies, which are significant, and depart as

         11  quickly as possible.

         12                 The New York City team was deployed

         13  to the Oklahoma City and more recently, to the Gulf

         14  Coast to aid in the search and rescue operations

         15  that followed Hurricanes Katrina and Rita.

         16                 That explains our need for a

         17  warehouse in the City. After September 11th, after

         18  the September 11th disaster and the destruction of 7

         19  World Trade Center, which housed OEM, our logistical

         20  supplies and the US&R cache were placed in a

         21  temporarily vacant warehouse at Pier 36 in

         22  Manhattan.

         23                 However, this location is no longer

         24  available for use, as it is to be turned over to the

         25  EDC for further development. Further, Pier 36, and
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          2  more importantly, is in a flood zone, and it is

          3  necessary that our warehouse is far outside any

          4  flood zone.

          5                 In addition to that location

          6  requirement, that is being outside of a flood zone,

          7  our warehouse must also have the following:

          8                 It needs large doors to allow tractor

          9  trailers to drive into the premises.

         10                 It needs high ceilings for maximum

         11  storage and vehicle clearance.

         12                 It needs sufficient internal and

         13  external area to allow for a large vehicle turning

         14  radius, either inside or outside the building.

         15                 It needs structural integrity.

         16                 It needs adequate floor load

         17  capacity.

         18                 And it needs to be proximate to the

         19  OEM headquarters, which is in Downtown Brooklyn.

         20                 And it needs to be close to major

         21  traffic thoroughfares.

         22                 With the assistance of DCAS, who is

         23  today with me, the City identified 22 warehouses

         24  that were available for leasing. Of those, only two

         25  met the minimum requirements. The other location was
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          2  at Vernon Boulevard in Queens and for which we began

          3  negotiations, that became unavailable when it was

          4  leased to another tenant, the New York Blood Bank,

          5  which had a greater need. The site at 930 Flushing

          6  Avenue met the above criteria, was available and fit

          7  our budget requirements. It is an ideal facility for

          8  OEM and the City's needs.

          9                 The safety of our employees and the

         10  surrounding community is a top priority for OEM. We

         11  will not be storing any radiological or hazardous

         12  materials in the warehouse. The majority of items

         13  are mundane but critical to emergency operations.

         14  For example, we store back-up computer equipment,

         15  tables and chairs, command post supplies, such as

         16  tents, radios, and lights, and tools, as well as

         17  tractor trailers, our command vehicles, some

         18  generators and light towers, which we use in all

         19  sorts of occasions.

         20                 The equipment that the US&R Team

         21  stores is mostly search and rescue equipment, which

         22  includes food and water, saws, rescue tools, tents,

         23  clothing, lighting and other specialty equipment in

         24  addition to vehicles, including tractor trailers, a

         25  pick-up truck and an SUV.
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          2                 The warehouse will generally be

          3  staffed during the regular hours by three or four

          4  OEM employees doing upkeep and maintenance work on

          5  the supplies and materials. If the US&R Team is

          6  deployed, or an emergency occurs that warrants some

          7  use of the stored supplies, the warehouse will be

          8  accessed, and accordingly should be considered a 24

          9  by 7 facility. However, in the event OEM needs to

         10  access the warehouse, the staff would likely be in

         11  and out of the warehouse in a relatively short time.

         12                 As others can attest, OEM is a very

         13  good neighbor, and we in no way intend to disrupt

         14  the community. In fact, we believe that not only

         15  will we be substantially less disruptive than the

         16  previous tenants in the warehouse, but our presence

         17  will enhance the safety and security of the site.

         18                 We understand that there are some in

         19  the community who would rather see the warehouse put

         20  to a different use; however, it is our understanding

         21  that there has not been an application submitted to

         22  rezone this property, nor, to our knowledge, has the

         23  landlord been contacted regarding other

         24  non-warehouse uses. This is not City-owned property;

         25  if the owner does not rent the warehouse to us he is
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          2  free to rent it to someone else as a warehouse

          3  outside of any ULURP review. As this space will be

          4  used as a warehouse for the foreseeable future, we

          5  hope that the residents of Bushwick will see OEM as

          6  an asset to the community and a reliable neighbor.

          7                 As you know, the mission of OEM is

          8  critical to the residents of this City. However, if

          9  you have any concerns, please know that there are

         10  dozens of organizations that can speak to the

         11  service that OEM provides to the citizens of the

         12  City of New York, and there are dozens more

         13  organizations throughout the country that can speak

         14  to the service of the US&R Team.

         15                 Indeed, our people are now out at the

         16  seven-alarm fire, coordinated the City efforts in

         17  the Greenpoint section of Brooklyn.

         18                 In conclusion, we hope you will see

         19  that this is an important facility that can be

         20  utilized to hold important resources for the City of

         21  New York and its residents. Further, we hope that

         22  you agree that we have found a suitable building in

         23  an appropriate location that serves the City's needs

         24  and we hope that you will approve this ULURP

         25  application.

                                                            16

          1  LANDMARKS, PUBLIC SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2                 At the end of the DCAS testimony, I

          3  would be happy to answer any questions. Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: I think before we

          5  move to questions, why don't we let the Deputy

          6  Commissioner from DCAS speak.

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FIERSTEIN: Good

          8  morning, Chair Lappin, and members of the

          9  Subcommittee on Landmarks, Public Siting and

         10  Maritime uses.

         11                 I am Lori Fierstein, Deputy

         12  Commissioner of Real Estate Services at the

         13  Department of Citywide Administrative Services.

         14                 Thank you for this opportunity to

         15  describe our extensive search for the Office of

         16  Emergency Management's Urban Search and Rescue and

         17  Logistics Storage facility.

         18                 Let me begin by saying that it would

         19  be extremely difficult to find an alternate site

         20  meeting OEM's needs in the very near future.

         21                 DCAS, with the aid of our private

         22  tenant representative, CB Richard Ellis, already

         23  conducted an extensive search for appropriate

         24  spaces. Starting in the fall of 2003, we surveyed

         25  over 20 sites for OEM's requirements.
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          2                 Most locations were either not as

          3  centrally located, required even more renovation, or

          4  did not have the column spacing wide enough to

          5  accommodate OEM vehicles. An alternative site was

          6  identified at 45-01 Vernon Boulevard, in Queens.

          7  However, when DCAS and its tenant representative

          8  submitted a term sheet to the landlord in September

          9  2004, the New York Blood Center was already in

         10  negotiations for the site and eventually leased it.

         11  The current proposed site at 930 Flushing Avenue,

         12  Brooklyn, was identified in the fall of 2004 and we

         13  reached an agreement in principle with the landlord

         14  in early 2005.

         15                 930 Flushing Avenue is located very

         16  close to the geographic center of the City. It has

         17  very good access to the Brooklyn Queens Expressway

         18  and other main transportation arteries for fast

         19  emergency response. As such, it meets all of OEM's

         20  requirements and is an excellent location for OEM's

         21  Urban Search and Rescue and Logistics storage. It is

         22  also close to OEM's new headquarters in Downtown

         23  Brooklyn and the DCAS Central Storehouse at 66-26

         24  Metropolitan Avenue in Middle Village, Queens.

         25                 If the City does not lease this space
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          2  for OEM, it is highly likely that another

          3  distribution or warehouse tenant would lease it from

          4  this private owner. It is worth noting that OEM's

          5  vehicular traffic is limited on a daily basis. Any

          6  other tenant using the space for a warehouse or

          7  distribution center would likely generate more daily

          8  traffic.

          9                 DCAS originally negotiated an

         10  agreement for a 15-year lease with an option to

         11  renew for five years for 96,000 square feet of

         12  warehouse space and 16,000 square feet of exterior

         13  parking at 930 Flushing Avenue. Under the terms

         14  originally negotiated, the City had the right to

         15  terminate the lease in the 7th and 10th years.

         16                 This 96,000 square foot space was

         17  previously occupied by Arizona Iced Tea as a

         18  distribution center and warehouse with heavy truck

         19  traffic. The total size of this one-story building

         20  with a mezzanine is 304,000 square feet. The

         21  remaining space is occupied by other firms,

         22  including American Medical Response, a national firm

         23  that offers emergency ambulance and non-emergency

         24  medical transportation services. This use also

         25  generates significant traffic. The AMR lease, and
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          2  all other leases expire in seven years.

          3                 During the ULURP process, Council

          4  Member Reyna raised objections to this site. The

          5  Council Member wanted to restrict the ULURP and the

          6  lease term to seven years so that in the future the

          7  site could be converted to another use.

          8                 In order to alleviate Council Member

          9  Reyna's concerns and to satisfy her objections, DCAS

         10  re-negotiated the terms of the agreement with the

         11  landlord for a 10-year term with both parties having

         12  the right to terminate after seven years.

         13                 The City will be investing $3.4

         14  million in capital improvements. Once ULURP is

         15  completed, the renovations can commence. Based on

         16  the construction timetable, we project OEM could

         17  occupy 930 Flushing Avenue in early 2007.

         18                 Thank you for this opportunity to

         19  testify. I am happy to answer any questions you may

         20  have.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you both.

         22                 This facility is currently at Pier

         23  36; is that correct?

         24                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: That's correct,

         25  in Manhattan.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: And how long can

          3  you stay at Pier 36?

          4                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: Well, there are

          5  two reasons: One, Pier 36 is in a flood zone. We

          6  probably shouldn't be there now. It was a temporary

          7  facility. The exact time when we have to move out, I

          8  couldn't tell you exactly. I know that it is also

          9  going to be made into a community use. I don't have

         10  the time frame.

         11                 Do you?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FIERSTEIN: Not

         13  specifically. But we have been asked repeatedly to

         14  move OEM as quickly as possible so the other project

         15  can move forward.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: And it will

         17  become -- what is the other project? Remind me.

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FIERSTEIN: A

         19  community facility.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Run by which

         21  agency?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FIERSTEIN: I'm

         23  sorry, can you repeat that, please?

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Which agency?

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FIERSTEIN: EDC is
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          2  managing this project. In 1993, there was litigation

          3  which was instituted against the City by the local

          4  community and Assemblyman Silver to convert this

          5  facility into a community facility, and the

          6  community won that litigation, and since that time

          7  they've been working on plans to develop the

          8  appropriate facility to go in there.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Okay. This

         10  facility, was there a decision made to lease, as

         11  opposed to purchase, and is there a benefit to one

         12  over the other?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FIERSTEIN: There

         14  isn't funding available to actually purchase the

         15  property. There is funding, however, available to

         16  lease a facility for OEM.

         17                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: There is another

         18  reason. Our needs could change and we may have to go

         19  to another facility larger, we may wish to do that

         20  in the future. It's one of the reasons we agreed to

         21  the seven-year termination clause.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: So this could be

         23  a temporary -- in fact, you view it as potentially a

         24  temporary site?

         25                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: It's on a shorter
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          2  term. Obviously if there is no other development and

          3  it works for us, we'll continue with the landlord

          4  into the future. But at seven years the landlord can

          5  look at this property, as well, he has his other

          6  leases end, becomes a much bigger site, and as I

          7  understand, there is some desire to try to develop

          8  the area, and if they do, then we would use it as,

          9  not a temporary site, but we would be willing, for

         10  the City's purposes, to look for another area.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: So who actually

         12  conducted the search? DCAS conducted the search for

         13  the site?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FIERSTEIN: DCAS

         15  conducted the search and then along with OEM visited

         16  over two dozen sites to find an appropriate site for

         17  OEM.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: So the two

         19  agencies worked together --

         20                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: I went to the

         21  sites also. I visited Vernon Boulevard and a number

         22  of others. Vernon was our first choice, but it went

         23  to the Blood Bank, which was negotiated before us

         24  and certainly got the lease. But we have looked at

         25  all the sites along with DCAS.
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FIERSTEIN: And we

          3  had the services of our tenant representative

          4  broker, who also looked along with us and identified

          5  these sites.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: And Commissioner

          7  Bruno, so you at OEM developed a list of criteria,

          8  obviously not being in the flood zone, having

          9  ability to have tractor trailers, and I wanted to

         10  ask you about close to major traffic thoroughfares.

         11  I think you said something about being able to

         12  access four boroughs easily; is that correct?

         13                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: No, it doesn't

         14  say that. We'd like to be close to major traffic

         15  thoroughfares if we're on the road, if the US&R Team

         16  is activated, it's going to go onto a major highway,

         17  which this is close to the Brooklyn/Queens

         18  Expressway. If we need to get equipment to get

         19  anywhere, we can get there quickly. It's relatively

         20  close to our headquarters, currently at 11 Water,

         21  and our new headquarters, which will be at 165

         22  Cadman Plaza East, just down from the Federal Court

         23  House. So, it's close. And we need that because

         24  often times we need to get that equipment somewhere

         25  quickly. We need to deploy some of our people from
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          2  our headquarters there to pick it up and get it out

          3  to the scene. So, that's one of the reasons we want

          4  it close to us.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Okay. We've been

          6  joined by Council Member Reyna, and this item is in

          7  her district.

          8                 Council Member.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Thank you,

         10  Madam Chair.

         11                 I just wanted to take this

         12  opportunity to go on the record, it's unfortunate

         13  that we might not have the same testimonies as the

         14  Brooklyn Borough President's Office who testified

         15  then in opposition of the OEM agency moving into

         16  this specific site. OEM proposing a lease to occupy

         17  for ten years, with approximately 96,000 square feet

         18  of warehouse space at 930 Flushing Avenue in

         19  Bushwick is not our ideal use of manufacturing space

         20  that is limited, and if that were to occur, it would

         21  delay the proposed mixed use development along the

         22  Flushing Avenue corridor that borders both

         23  communities, Williamsburg and Bushwick. Warehousing

         24  supplies would have a significant and detrimental

         25  impact on my community, and does not provide
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          2  economic incentives for other businesses to move

          3  into the area.

          4                 It would at best create four jobs,

          5  versus the hundreds of jobs if retail were to allow

          6  -- if retail were to be developed. A lack of local

          7  jobs contributes to the economic instability for the

          8  local residents, as well as denies the much-needed

          9  businesses and services for expansion.

         10                 On January 24th, Assemblyman Lopez,

         11  Nadine Wittig (phonetic), the District Manager of

         12  Community Board 4, Executive Directors of St.

         13  Nicholas Preservation Corporation and East

         14  Williamsburg Valley Industrial Corporation, as well

         15  as local residents, testified at a public hearing at

         16  the Borough President's Office in opposition of

         17  OEM's application. We did not oppose OEM to come

         18  into North Brooklyn. What we do oppose is them

         19  occupying this specific site. We testified the

         20  Madame Moiselle Site is instrumental in the local

         21  economic development plans we have envisioned and

         22  have been working towards along the Flushing Avenue

         23  corridor. Brooklyn Borough President Markowitz was

         24  persuaded by our argument on February 8th to make

         25  the recommendation to oppose and disapprove the City
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          2  Planning Commission's OEM's application.

          3                 In Fiscal Year '05 and '06, I was

          4  successful in allocating funding for local economic

          5  development studies to be conducted in my district.

          6  The Flushing Avenue Corridor Study is the second in

          7  this series of reports.

          8                 The Retail, Research and Marketing

          9  Firm of Phillips, Price and Shapiro Associates,

         10  Incorporated prepared this independent study and had

         11  identified 930 Flushing Avenue as an anchor site,

         12  and a catalyst for spurring much-needed local

         13  economic development in the Bushwick area.

         14                 Based upon this information, my

         15  office reached out to the owner of 9 (sic) Flushing

         16  Avenue, and it's taken five years to get in touch

         17  with the property owner, and began a dialogue with

         18  the owner of this site. We appreciated the extensive

         19  communications we've had with Mr. Wolf of Read

         20  Properties. He is just as enthusiastic to see the

         21  working relationship come to fruition for the mixed

         22  use intent.

         23                 We have been meeting on a regular

         24  basis, and representatives, such as the Commissioner

         25  of Small Business Services, Commissioner Walsh, as
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          2  well as the Brooklyn Chamber of Commerce, Ken Adams,

          3  the New York City Economic Development Corporation

          4  and MJB Retail and Real Estate Consultants in

          5  developing plans for retail and commercial usage at

          6  these locations. We've expressed tours and have

          7  invited these folks to come and join us to visualize

          8  with us.

          9                 Mr. Wolf is also working with

         10  Ridgewood Bushwick Senior Citizens Council to

         11  develop mixed income housing on this site as well as

         12  the surrounding areas.

         13                 Over the past four years -- four

         14  months, I apologize, we have provided OEM and the

         15  Administration listings of available alternative

         16  sites, warehouse space, throughout the Boroughs of

         17  Brooklyn and Queens.

         18                 Additionally, on behalf of OEM, my

         19  office has reached out to our local industrial park,

         20  the Brooklyn Navy Yard, the Brooklyn Army Terminal,

         21  for available space as well. The Brooklyn Navy Yard

         22  expressed how they were not interested in this type

         23  of warehousing use.

         24                 I encourage OEM to make a good faith

         25  effort by using the listings we've provided in
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          2  finding more suitable locations.

          3                 Finally, I ask that the City be

          4  responsible in its decision-making, that they

          5  recognize that what may appear to be a simple

          6  relocation of a facility can have dire consequences

          7  for the growth and development of community.

          8                 We've built hundreds of units in this

          9  very site across the street from the Madame Moiselle

         10  Factory, and there is no supermarket, there is no

         11  cleaning facilities, drycleaners, there is no

         12  essential services that perhaps we can see five

         13  years from now being developed.

         14                 Land Use takes time, rezoning takes

         15  time, negotiations take time, and I understand that

         16  they were trying their best in accommodating our

         17  needs by reducing a ten-year -- by reducing a

         18  20-year intent to lease to a ten year with the

         19  option to leave in seven. But then what? And Council

         20  Member Arroyo has just expressed to me, well, then

         21  in seven years are we to look at this site and say

         22  that they're going to have to move again after the

         23  City has invested money in this site to move in, so,

         24  we'll be back to square one? Or is it that the

         25  Administration plans to move in there, claiming
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          2  they're going to move in seven years, but create the

          3  environment where it's more conducive to remain for

          4  the exact 20 years that they had first intended to?

          5  I cannot risk that. And for families in our

          6  neighborhood being driven out by the expensive

          7  housing market, depending on a job market that has

          8  shifted, you know, it's no longer factories that

          9  exist in this area, and we need to replace a lot of

         10  the job loss with something else, a warehouse is not

         11  going to do the job. And I implore upon my

         12  colleagues to take all of this into consideration. I

         13  invite everyone to come and join me, as I have asked

         14  several agencies to come and do the same in seeing

         15  the potential to the area of Bushwick and

         16  Williamsburg, so that we can have the mix of

         17  backgrounds, all walks of life. You know, we have a

         18  vibrant new community coming in meeting an old

         19  neighborhood, and we're trying to preserve the

         20  rights of everyone, the rights to remain, the rights

         21  to work in their neighborhoods, as they have done so

         22  for many years.

         23                 I'd like to make sure that we're

         24  going to leave behind something that is going to be

         25  strong, a healthy community that will be able to
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          2  afford to remain. Thank you.

          3                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: May I comment?

          4  When I think OEM is probably the best tenant to

          5  bring in there, this is a private site, this

          6  landlord can lease in a longer term without any

          7  review here, to be a private transaction. So, I did

          8  go out and I met with Assemblyman Lopez and with

          9  Councilwoman Reyna's staff, and a bunch of people at

         10  Assemblyman Lopez's office, and we went through

         11  this. And, yes, at that time we were seeking a

         12  longer lease. We are equally interested in this

         13  place being developed. The lease allows for either

         14  side to step away. I am sure if you develop a

         15  proposal that is reasonable and can be accomplished,

         16  the landlord will want that, you will want it, he

         17  can utilize his entire facility, which is much more

         18  than the 100,000 square foot or so we're taking,

         19  it's in excess of 200,000 square foot for the

         20  development, and in seven years we are out of there.

         21                 As far as I know, there has been no

         22  attempt at rezoning at this point. There is nothing

         23  on the table for landlord. The City is as interested

         24  as you are in seeing the development. I don't know

         25  what you mean when you say being responsible, or
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          2  some ruse that we're doing here, that's not at all

          3  the case. I've been very clear, we've stepped back

          4  because Councilwoman Reyna was concerned, and I said

          5  we would go with a seven-year lease. I would rather

          6  have a longer lease, but I'll do that because if

          7  something develops there, I want to see that happen,

          8  and we will find another spot.

          9                 The problem with OEM is, we have our

         10  main warehouse, all very important supplies to this

         11  City, in a flood zone. That is not good at any time.

         12  I don't know when the time comes that we are no

         13  longer able to get into that building. It's been

         14  there for some period of time before I got here.

         15  I've been concerned about it from the day I got

         16  here, and this is why I pursued the opportunity to

         17  get a new location, along with the City's desire to

         18  do something else with that location as well, being

         19  Pier 36.

         20                 So, I don't think that we're in any

         21  way trying to do anything other than do what's best

         22  for the City, in the interim hold the place for the

         23  Councilwoman and the community. We are the best one

         24  to hold it, rather than a private entity who have

         25  entered into a longer term lease, I'm not sure how

                                                            32

          1  LANDMARKS, PUBLIC SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  you would break that. And I think it will take you

          3  some time, it will take you several years to get

          4  this to a point where you're ready to go. And at the

          5  time we will be eligible to move out, and if you

          6  will come up with a better plan for the community,

          7  we will move out. The lease will require us to. The

          8  owner, who is sitting right here, will tell us he is

          9  exercising the seven-year option. We will move out.

         10  I recognize we are going to spend some money here,

         11  but the money we spend is money well spent. For the

         12  next seven years we will be in a location that is

         13  not in the flood zone, that it's located the way we

         14  want it to be. And as far as what was there

         15  previously, this, our use is a use that is much less

         16  offensive than what was there. The juice trucks that

         17  were there were very active. We will not be that

         18  active. It's only when we need to get in there we'll

         19  get in there, and that's usually relatively

         20  infrequently. So we will not add any disruption to

         21  the community, and we will be I think overall a good

         22  neighbor.

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FIERSTEIN: I just

         24  want to say something.

         25                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: Yes, go ahead.
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FIERSTEIN: I also

          3  would like to speak to one point that you mentioned,

          4  Council Member Reyna.

          5                 We reviewed countless numbers of

          6  sites, including all of the sites on the list that

          7  were given to us through the Council's Office. We

          8  reviewed every single one of them. In many cases the

          9  sites were too small. In some cases the sites were

         10  in flood plains. In others the property was just for

         11  sale, and we're not interested or able to acquire

         12  the property at this point. In other cases, the

         13  property had recently been sold and they were not

         14  interested in leasing it. We reviewed every single

         15  site that was given to us as an alternative.

         16                 And the other point that I would like

         17  to make is that this site is already encumbered by

         18  several other leases that have seven-year terms

         19  remaining, and that was part of why, as Commissioner

         20  Bruno mentioned, we went forward to renegotiate with

         21  the landlord so that we have a lease that's ten

         22  years, but that could be cancelled by either party

         23  after seven years. So, if in fact there is the

         24  ability to do that, the landlord can tell us after

         25  seven years that he wants to terminate the tenancy.

                                                            34

          1  LANDMARKS, PUBLIC SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  We would not be in a position to argue with that,

          3  because that's how the lease is written.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Commissioner,

          5  the statement that I've just heard, as far as all

          6  the sites having been looked into, and it seems to

          7  me that it was very difficult to acquire this amount

          8  of space anywhere else, therefore, this site seems

          9  to be the only site that is suitable; what makes you

         10  think that in seven years you're going to be able to

         11  find a site to replace this one?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FIERSTEIN: We

         13  will have to again do a site search, and we will go

         14  through this, a similar process, and need to look

         15  for another site if the landlord decides that he

         16  wants to terminate our tenancy.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: It seems to me

         18  that you've expressed exactly what my concerns are,

         19  in exercising the search of trying to find

         20  alternative sites, and not being successful to

         21  account for the fact that in seven years in good

         22  faith I cannot believe that you're going to be able

         23  to begin a new search and go through this all over

         24  again.

         25                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: Well, we found
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          2  this site in less than that, and we'll -- the City

          3  landscape changes, there will be other

          4  opportunities. We will find another site if we have

          5  to, that we would legally be required to.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: If you have to.

          7                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: Well, of course.

          8  And I assume that you'll play a role in that. You

          9  will bring forward to the landlord something that

         10  that landlord is interested in in developing, and

         11  the landlord will exercise that option and say to

         12  the City, you've been a great tenant, we've liked

         13  having you here, but we have a better idea, and

         14  that's why we've agreed to do that, so that the

         15  landlord can do it, and I assume you're going to

         16  work with that landlord.

         17                 The landlord, by the way, is here,

         18  and I assume their representative --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: They'll have an

         20  opportunity.

         21                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: -- Will have an

         22  opportunity to say a few words, Council Member

         23  Lappin, if you want.

         24                 I want to make one other point with

         25  regard to, I don't know what it is you're going to
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          2  propose for this site, if anything, in the future. I

          3  assume you have some ideas. I can't speak to whether

          4  the City would agree or support anything you were

          5  going to put there. You will come up with a

          6  proposal, as anyone would, to develop a piece of

          7  property and it will go through the process.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: So,

          9  Commissioner, you already know that the City, as in

         10  the Administration, is not going to support anything

         11  that would be possibly put in as an application for

         12  rezoning?

         13                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: I don't know

         14  anything about that. I don't know anything about

         15  that.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: It seems that

         17  you're presuming --

         18                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: Have you put in

         19  an application?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: I'm not the

         21  property owner.

         22                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: In other words,

         23  none has been put in through the property owner that

         24  I know of. I'm not presuming anything. Whatever

         25  would come in as an application would be reviewed by
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          2  all the agencies that are required to do that, as

          3  well as -- well, all of the agencies that are

          4  required to do it, have the authority to do it.

          5                 I'm just saying my sense is, and our

          6  reason for the seven years is if a proposal comes

          7  forward that you believe is appropriate, the

          8  landlord believes is appropriate and is approved,

          9  this lease will be over in seven years if the

         10  landlord wants to do that, and if we do. If we need

         11  something different, we may very well exercise that

         12  option also at a later point.

         13                 But OEM is an important entity to

         14  this City. We need to have logistical support that

         15  we get from a warehouse such as this. It really is

         16  an ideal location for us, and not a bad place saver

         17  for you so that the community can develop its plans,

         18  can go for its rezoning, work that out, and get the

         19  entire piece of property available to the community,

         20  to the landlord and to you in seven years. That's

         21  all we're proposing.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: And we are going

         23  to hear from the landlord and his representatives

         24  next.

         25                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: Oh, good.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: I'm going to

          3  allow my colleagues to ask questions, but if I can

          4  just reserve the right to come back to the

          5  Commissioner?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Certainly.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: The Chair of the

          9  Land Use Committee, Council Member Katz.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Thank you, Madam

         11  Chair. You've had quite the run the first few

         12  months, might I add. Doing a great job.

         13                 I first would like to just

         14  acknowledge the history with Deputy Commissioner

         15  Fierstein, who I find to be extremely responsive,

         16  since I was an Assemblywoman, when I was still young

         17  --

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FIERSTEIN: Thank

         19  you.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: So I just

         21  appreciate her being here. And also Commissioner

         22  Bruno, who is new, but have had decent experience so

         23  far, but the history with Commissioner Fierstein

         24  goes way back. So, welcome.

         25                 I would like to, if I can, Madam
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          2  Chair, and in deference to the Councilwoman whose

          3  area it's in, I just want to put some answers on the

          4  record about taking a position, if I can, because I

          5  think it needs to be put in perspective for everyone

          6  and what we're dealing with here. I've been fully

          7  briefed, and I know you have, but I don't think

          8  everybody has. So, if you can just answer a few

          9  questions, just factual questions for us, that would

         10  be very helpful.

         11                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: Okay.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: The size of the

         13  entire site, not the OEM portion of it that you're

         14  taking, but the entire site is how big?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FIERSTEIN: 930

         16  Flushing Avenue is 304,000 square feet.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: 304,000 square

         18  feet, and it's shaped as a square warehouse, or

         19  rectangular warehouse, right, is my understanding?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FIERSTEIN:

         21  Rectangular, I believe.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Rectangular

         23  warehouse in which this site would be the upper

         24  left-hand corner, the northeast? It's one of the

         25  corners?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FIERSTEIN: Yes.

          3                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: Yes.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: And how large is

          5  that site, the OEM site?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FIERSTEIN: The

          7  interior is 96,000 square feet, and then there's

          8  exterior parking that's 16,000 square feet.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: So as part of

         10  the warehouse it's 96,000 square feet, and the

         11  parking lot is 13,000 --

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FIERSTEIN:

         13  16,000.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: 16,000 square

         15  feet, I'm sorry.

         16                 And the other leases in the building

         17  are, the other 200,000 square feet are up in seven

         18  years?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FIERSTEIN: What I

         20  understand, and actually the owner would be better

         21  to address that, I understand that there are several

         22  other leases in the building, and their term is for

         23  seven more years.

         24                 I can't tell you that the entire

         25  space is occupied.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Right.

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FIERSTEIN: He

          4  will be able to do that.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: But what's there

          6  is about seven years left?

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FIERSTEIN: Yes.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: And after,

          9  according to the lease that you have agreed to,

         10  after seven years what happens for OEM? They can on

         11  their own -- can one side just get rid of the lease?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FIERSTEIN: Both

         13  sides have the right to terminate after seven years.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Ex parte.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FIERSTEIN: Yes.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: On their own?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FIERSTEIN: Yes.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Okay.

         19                 And in order to move in for OEM, is

         20  there any major renovations that need to be done in

         21  that area for the OEM site?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FIERSTEIN: Yes.

         23  The City is going to be putting in approximately

         24  $3.4 million, and the landlord is contributing

         25  $400,000 to the renovations, and it is extensive
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          2  because of the nature of the kind of vehicles that

          3  OEM has, there are floor load issues and ventilation

          4  issues that need to be addressed, so we will be

          5  spending a lot of capital dollars.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: That's in the

          7  warehouse? Or in the parking -- what's done? So, in

          8  other words, when you leave in seven years what type

          9  of shape is it going to be in? I don't know what's

         10  done in order to house a facility like this.

         11                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: It will be in the

         12  same shape, it will actually be in better shape than

         13  it is right now. But it's a very nice warehouse,

         14  very large, very open. It will be the same. We will

         15  take all of our equipment out. We will bring

         16  equipment in, mainly vehicles and supplies and we

         17  will take them out, and the warehouse will be pretty

         18  much in the same condition. There will be some

         19  upgrade on ventilation, because we do run vehicles

         20  inside.

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FIERSTEIN:

         22  Absolutely.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: So the

         24  renovations are to make it better, as opposed to

         25  changing the structure?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: It will not

          3  change the structure.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Okay.

          5                 Now, just to answer what Council

          6  Member Reyna was talking about, employment; there is

          7  no one on the site now is my understanding, right?

          8  But there was the Arizona Iced Tea Company?

          9                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: Yes.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FIERSTEIN:

         11  Arizona had their distribution center there.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: And there were

         13  50 employees there? How many employees were there,

         14  do we know about?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FIERSTEIN: I

         16  don't know.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: And how many

         18  employees will be there now?

         19                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: Well, OEM employs

         20  122 people. We would send people out into the

         21  warehouse for various reasons. If we needed experts

         22  to work on MIS, or technology, we would send those

         23  folks out. We have a regular group of about three or

         24  four that we would send to maintain basic equipment.

         25  But we could be maintaining different types of

                                                            44

          1  LANDMARKS, PUBLIC SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  equipment out there. We would not send many.

          3  Somewhere between three and five people on a regular

          4  basis would be there, and it might not be a full

          5  day. Depends on what they're doing. They're all

          6  assigned to our headquarters. They only would go to

          7  the warehouse as needed.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: And the traffic

          9  in and out?

         10                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: There would be

         11  very little traffic in and out. Most of our

         12  equipment is stored there. Today we have a

         13  seven-alarm fire going. We brought our command

         14  center, which is a big bus. We would have taken it

         15  out of this warehouse where it would be stored, and

         16  brought it to the Greenpoint Section where it would

         17  stay for probably a day or two while this fire was

         18  resolved. And, of course, if we had an activation of

         19  the Urban Search and Rescue Team, two tractor

         20  trailers would go out with a few other vehicles, and

         21  would go somewhere around the country to respond and

         22  come back.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: It's not a daily

         24  in and out business.

         25                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: Absolutely not.
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          2  Nothing like what was going on with Arizona.

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FIERSTEIN: It

          4  would be substantially less traffic than when

          5  Arizona Iced Tea was there.

          6                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: Arizona was a

          7  regular business running every day.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: And the last

          9  question, how many sites did you look at? Not only

         10  your sites, but also Council Member Reyna's?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FIERSTEIN: About

         12  40, 45 sites in total. And that includes the list

         13  from the Council.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I thank you,

         15  Madam Chair. Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: So, of the 45

         17  sites that you reviewed, there were two that you

         18  thought would work, and the one that was leased by

         19  the Blood Center, and this one?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FIERSTEIN: That's

         21  correct.

         22                 Okay.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Okay.

         24                 Council Member Barron.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: When you moved
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          2  into Pier 36, that was a flood site, right?

          3                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: Yes.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: And what is

          5  Cadman Plaza, is that a flood site?

          6                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: No, it's outside

          7  the flood zone. You mean our new building?

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: What about the

          9  prior one?

         10                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: The current

         11  building at 11 Water is in a flood zone.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Right.

         13                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: Both of those

         14  locations were set up after September 11th.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: I understand

         16  all of that, but you move into flood sites, and I

         17  don't think --

         18                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: That was earlier,

         19  right.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Right. I

         21  understand. But you've done that. And I'm very, very

         22  concerned about Emergency Management, because

         23  anything could happen --

         24                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: Right.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: But you were
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          2  able to do that, and now at this flood site at Pier

          3  36, they want to build a basketball or something,

          4  right? Some kind of recreation?

          5                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: Some type of

          6  recreational --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Right. So,

          8  we're going to move out of there to make way for the

          9  recreation, and then you come into this site here,

         10  the manager on the Community Planning Board said,

         11  no, we don't want it; the Borough President said,

         12  no, we don't want it; the Assemblyperson said, no,

         13  we don't want it; the Councilperson/Member said, no,

         14  we don't want it. So, you come before us, and I must

         15  say this, and probably not your intentions, but it

         16  did sound like a subtle, subtle kind of threat when

         17  -- subtle, subtle, I'll tell you what I think the

         18  threat was, that if, you know, if the Planning

         19  Commission doesn't support zoning, rezoning idea of

         20  any other kind of project, we don't even get it,

         21  right? If the Planning Commission doesn't support

         22  what the owner submits to us that might be favorable

         23  to the community, if the City's controlled Planning

         24  Commission doesn't support that, we don't even get

         25  it.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: I don't know the

          3  answer to that.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: I'll give you

          5  the answer.

          6                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: Councilman --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Wait. Let me

          8  finish. Let me finish.

          9                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: Okay, sure.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: No, we don't

         11  get it. So, as a way of you saying, no, you don't do

         12  this, and that's what it appeared to, to me, that if

         13  we don't do this, I don't know that the Planning

         14  Commission is going to support anything you bring

         15  before them. So, we can play this little power game

         16  and say, well, anything you bring we're not going to

         17  support, and you can say, well, anything you bring,

         18  we're not going to support and kind of be stuck.

         19                 So, I just think that you're rather

         20  arrogant, in my opinion. Yes, to see all of that

         21  opposition, come here anyway, and then I don't know

         22  whether subconsciously or subtly or subliminally,

         23  whatever, suggest that the Planning Commission may

         24  not, may not support a rezoning effort by community

         25  groups or by elected officials that might want to
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          2  come forward, it's almost like a little power

          3  struggle. Just in the appearance, not a big thing

          4  about it. And then you say, well, you don't have an

          5  idea, we didn't see you submit anything, and we

          6  could be here for seven years, and when you finally

          7  come up with whatever you decide to do, the owner

          8  can tell us that we have to go in seven years, or

          9  the owner can say, no, we don't want to do anything

         10  that the community is doing, let him keep the other

         11  three years or whatever, it comes up to ten. I just

         12  think that had I been in your position, I would have

         13  respected the community more, the Council member,

         14  the Assemblyperson, or all of those who are in

         15  opposition and try to find another place, rather

         16  than trying to come here and trying to get us to

         17  support this over all of that opposition, because

         18  the Planning Commission may not even support a

         19  rezoning that comes our way.

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FIERSTEIN: I'd

         21  like to respond in part anyway.

         22                 It's my understanding that the

         23  Community Board did not vote no. The Community Board

         24  did not vote.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: The Community
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          2  Board, they didn't have a quorum. But the manager,

          3  the District Manager did testify at the Borough

          4  hearing, no; is that correct?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FIERSTEIN: I

          6  don't have that information.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Well, that's

          8  what happened.

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FIERSTEIN: I know

         10  that the Community Board, they didn't vote.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: No, I didn't

         12  say they voted no. They're manager testified against

         13  it.

         14                 The idea is there is community

         15  opposition. The community groups, the manager

         16  testified at the Borough Hearing no. That's what

         17  happened, whether you recall it or not, that's what

         18  happened. The manager testified, the Borough

         19  President said no, the Council Member said no, the

         20  Assemblyperson said no. That's what happened.

         21  Whatever you recall, is, you know, not --

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FIERSTEIN: Okay,

         23  and the City Planning Commission voted in favor of

         24  it.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Which is the
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          2  City. Which is you. That's your guys.

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FIERSTEIN: Yes.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Yes, the City.

          5  I'm clear.

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FIERSTEIN: The

          7  Borough President does have a representative at the

          8  City Planning Commission, and the City Planning

          9  Commission voted unanimously in support.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Right, but the

         11  Borough President said no. The Borough President

         12  said no. And, yes, the Borough President has a

         13  person on the Commission, could have been outvoted.

         14  But your City agency, and you, say yes, the Borough

         15  President no, the Manager for the Planning Board no,

         16  the Council Member no, the Assemblymember no. And

         17  because you have your Planning Commission that could

         18  disregard all of those nos and bring it before us

         19  anyway, now you want us to say yes along with the

         20  City.

         21                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: That's true, we

         22  would like you to say yes.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: I know you do.

         24                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: We would like you

         25  to say yes. And just on one very simple issue, there
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          2  is no lack of respect on my part for anyone here, or

          3  anyone in any community, I went out and met with

          4  Council Member Reyna's people and with Assemblyman

          5  Lopez. I sat in their office and we went over it.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: And they said

          7  no.

          8                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: Assemblyman Lopez

          9  asked me lots of questions about what was going to

         10  be in the building, and I gave that to everyone so

         11  they could see it. I went back and said I think that

         12  there's real concern there for development, can we

         13  rearrange --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: I got all of

         15  that, I'm just trying to --

         16                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: No, Councilman.

         17  Councilman, wait.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: I'm just

         19  trying to cut the time.

         20                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: Wait, Councilman,

         21  let me just say a few things.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: I'm just

         23  trying to cut the time.

         24                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: That's all right.

         25  We heard you. We heard you.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: But the bottom

          3  line was everybody said no.

          4                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: No, no. I just

          5  want to get to the issue of respect that you somehow

          6  throw out that I have lack of respect --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: It is.

          8                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: And I don't

          9  intend to argue with you. I just simply said I did

         10  go out, I did ask, and I asked --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: And they said

         12  no.

         13                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: Please. I asked

         14  that we reduce the time frame to try to respect what

         15  Councilwoman Reyna was doing. Whether that's

         16  adequate for her, I understand she may not agree,

         17  you may not agree, but that's what we did and that's

         18  why I went back and asked for a short lease. I

         19  thought that might make it a win/win for both of us.

         20  We would have a site for the seven years, and when

         21  the development was approved, we would be moved out

         22  because the landlord would tell us to, or we would

         23  move out on our own because if the City approved it,

         24  it would want that.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Okay, well,
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          2  let me ask you, once you got that information to the

          3  Council Member and to everybody that you had these

          4  respectful meetings with, and they said no, or did

          5  they? Did they say, all right, we agree that after

          6  seven years we will do this?

          7                 At some point they made a decision,

          8  after all of your meetings, correct?

          9                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: The seven years

         10  we negotiated that after our meeting. In other

         11  words, we came up with an alternative proposal.

         12  Today we're here with that proposal.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: You never

         14  spoke to her about the alternative --

         15                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: Yes, she knows

         16  about it. But we came to a body, this body today --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: I understand.

         18  I'm clear about that.

         19                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: I know you are.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: When you spoke

         21  to her about the proposal, did she say yes or no?

         22                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: No, no. She is

         23  not happy with that.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Right. So,

         25  that's all my point. It's not that you spoke to
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          2  people, I know you're supposed to do that. That once

          3  you finish all of that and they say no to

          4  everything, why wouldn't you support the desires of

          5  the community and elected officials and all the

          6  people involved?

          7                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: I think there's a

          8  way --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: That's what I

         10  don't understand.

         11                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: I think there's a

         12  way to do this, the way it was suggested, that

         13  allows both things to occur. But I understand you

         14  disagree.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Right. Right.

         16  People disagree.

         17                 All right, I'll stop there.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you.

         19                 Council Member Liu.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: And I just

         21  want to encourage my colleagues to vote no on this

         22  one.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: We're not, I

         24  don't think we're taking the vote today on this

         25  particular item.
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          2                 Council Member Liu.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Thank you, Madam

          4  Chairperson.

          5                 With due respect to Council Member

          6  Barron, I don't think that just because everybody

          7  said no that the City should not come before this

          8  Committee and the Council to seek approval, just as

          9  I think that just because everyone says yes, doesn't

         10  mean that we have to just go ahead and approve it in

         11  the City Council. But I do agree with Council Member

         12  Barron that there was a little bit of an insinuation

         13  in your remarks.

         14                 You know, I've spoken with you,

         15  Commissioner, many times. I don't honestly think you

         16  meant it, but it did come across a little bit --

         17                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: I didn't mean

         18  that.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: -- Well, if we

         20  didn't go along with this, then the City may not

         21  support Council Member Reyna's efforts.

         22                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: I didn't mean

         23  that. All I meant to say is that I don't know what

         24  the proposal will be, and I'm not the person who

         25  would make that decision. That's all I was trying to
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          2  say. That's the only thing.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Thank you.

          4                 I have a question for Deputy

          5  Commissioner Fierstein.

          6                 Were there concerns raised by the

          7  community about the additional traffic?

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FIERSTEIN: Not

          9  specifically. It was more of a question of what

         10  would happen to the property in the long term.

         11  Especially since --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Okay, but there

         13  were no concerns --

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FIERSTEIN: Not

         15  that I'm aware of.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: -- About the

         17  traffic?

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FIERSTEIN: Not

         19  that I'm aware of.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: See, that I have

         21  to say, Madam Chair, I find a little bit troubling.

         22  Because in your testimony, Deputy Commissioner, you

         23  actually spend a great deal of your testimony

         24  talking about how this actually would make for a

         25  better traffic condition than a retail
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          2  establishment, which is what clearly the local

          3  Council member wants.

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FIERSTEIN: Not

          5  than a retail establishment; than what was there

          6  before.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Well, regardless,

          8  it implied, and I think this is a far stronger

          9  implication than what I thought of Commissioner

         10  Bruno's comments before, that, oh, this won't affect

         11  traffic. And it makes me feel that perhaps the

         12  Department's thoughts are that Council members are

         13  just concerned about traffic and that we just don't

         14  want traffic. And that's why we wouldn't want this,

         15  while, in fact, your testimony is arguing that

         16  traffic isn't a consideration here. So, we shouldn't

         17  have any problem with that.

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FIERSTEIN: No,

         19  that wasn't the intent.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Why would you

         21  even bring up traffic, if it wasn't even a concern

         22  voiced by the community?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FIERSTEIN: We

         24  brought it up because it's another warehouse use

         25  that would be there for some period of time, and we
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          2  just were making the point that they're a good

          3  neighbor and that they're not going to adversely

          4  impact the community for however long they would be

          5  in that location.

          6                 It wasn't to suggest that they're

          7  necessarily a better use than a retail

          8  establishment, which might occur some time down the

          9  road. It was never intended for anything more than

         10  that.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Thank you very

         12  much.

         13                 Thank you, Madam Chair.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: And I just wanted

         15  to add on the record that this parcel is zoned M3-1,

         16  it doesn't require a zoning change for this use. But

         17  there would be a zoning change required to have

         18  retail at this site. So, that's the discussion about

         19  there would have to be an application that would go

         20  through the ULURP process to rezone the site before

         21  retail use would be allowed. But this use does not

         22  require a change.

         23                 Council Member Palma.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Thank you,

         25  Madam Chair.
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          2                 Commissioner, in the location before

          3  September 11, that was also a leased space?

          4                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: Pier 36?

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: No, before Pier

          6  36?

          7                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: We didn't have a

          8  location. We worked out of 7 World Trade Center.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Okay. And then

         10  Pier 36, that's a leased space.

         11                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: Right, after

         12  September 11th.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Does the City

         14  have any plans on having OEM have a permanent place?

         15  Because, I mean, I have concerns that an office

         16  that's important, that does the work that you do is

         17  so important, doesn't have a permanent location.

         18                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: We do have a

         19  permanent location at 165 Cadman Plaza. It's a brand

         20  new building we're building right now. We'll move

         21  into it in July, likely, this year. That's our

         22  office. The warehouse space would be leased.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: But the

         24  component of why you're leasing now, I mean,

         25  shouldn't that also have a permanent location?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: That's an option.

          3  The option we're presented with is leasing at this

          4  point. We don't have capital funds to purchase, so

          5  we have gone to lease availability, which is good on

          6  a warehouse. Our office for sure is ours, and we

          7  own.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: I just believe

          9  that, you know, $3.4 million is a lot of money to

         10  invest in a place that you eventually will move out

         11  of, and I mean, you're not going to take that

         12  investment with you, that I think the City should

         13  just be looking at taking that $3.4 million and then

         14  investing it into a permanent location where we can

         15  do the kind of warehousing, storage, equipment,

         16  whatever we're going to be looking to.

         17                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: Thank you.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Council Member

         20  Arroyo.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: Thank you,

         22  Madam Chair. I'm not sure who this question is

         23  directed at.

         24                 One of the things that I hear with

         25  regards to the City investing capital dollars in
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          2  non-City-owned property is that there is a

          3  restricted covenant that has to be signed, that is

          4  extensive, 20, 30 years, and depending on who I talk

          5  to, I get a different number. We're facing that

          6  challenge with providing capital funding for senior

          7  centers that are not in City-owned property. Does

          8  this apply here? Is there somebody here that knows

          9  the answer? And if it doesn't, why doesn't it apply?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FIERSTEIN: The

         11  only thing that I can talk to is in lease

         12  facilities, when we spend capital dollars, the lease

         13  term has to be a minimum of five years. Actually,

         14  seven years. I'm sorry, it's seven years. That's for

         15  a leased facility.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: That seems

         17  like a contradiction to me. Since we, as members,

         18  are locked -- or our community groups are locked

         19  into a different process, why is there a different

         20  process?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FIERSTEIN: I

         22  cannot address that question. I can only address how

         23  our leases are done, and when you can use capital

         24  funds, and for leased space, you have to have a

         25  lease for seven years.

                                                            63

          1  LANDMARKS, PUBLIC SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: Okay. Is there

          3  someone from the Administration here that can answer

          4  that question?

          5                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: We'll have to get

          6  an answer for you, and we'll do that.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: We'd appreciate

          8  it if you would.

          9                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: Yes.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Because it's a

         11  good question. And it seems to me that there are

         12  different answers, and I've been told ten years for

         13  public libraries and 20 years for youth centers and

         14  different numbers for different facilities, and it's

         15  a fair question.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: And why is

         17  there a difference, if what we're all trying to

         18  accomplish is pretty much the same thing, as

         19  warehousing the nuts and bolts of what OEM does? And

         20  I agree with Council Member Palma, I think the City

         21  needs to invest its time and energy in finding a

         22  permanent location so that in seven years, if you're

         23  forced to, you don't have to go through this process

         24  again. I think that just makes so much sense that we

         25  shouldn't even be having this conversation.
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          2                 So, if we can get an answer to the

          3  question on restricted covenant, and why is it that

          4  there is a different set of numbers for different

          5  types of programs. Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you,

          7  Council Member Arroyo.

          8                 Council Member Mendez.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Good

         10  afternoon. I just had to check. I have a couple of

         11  questions. First, in someone's testimony here, Mr.

         12  Bruno, Commissioner Bruno, you say that you were

         13  displaced from the 7 World Trade Center?

         14                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: Well, it was

         15  destroyed in the September 11th --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: I'm aware of

         17  that. But that was office space there, wasn't that?

         18                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: Correct.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: So, are you

         20  going to be having office space in this warehouse?

         21                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: No.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Okay.

         23                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: We have a new

         24  location at 165 Cadman Plaza East.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: 165 Cadman,
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          2  that's where your office space is now?

          3                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: No, that would be

          4  a new building we're moving into into July. We're

          5  currently at 11 Water Street in Brooklyn.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Okay.

          7                 So, out of this location on Flushing

          8  Avenue, it will just be truck and storage service;

          9  is that correct?

         10                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: It is a

         11  warehouse. It's a warehouse for lots of equipment,

         12  some vehicles that we will utilize for any emergency

         13  in New York City. And also for the deployment of our

         14  Urban Search and Rescue Team, which is part of the

         15  national network of Urban Search and Rescue Teams.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: So, currently

         17  there is 304 square feet. In someone's testimony I

         18  added up the square footage, you're only going to be

         19  using 112 hundred (sic) square feet?

         20                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: 112,000.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: 112,000,

         22  excuse me. The rest of the square footage is

         23  currently used by American Medical Response; is that

         24  correct?

         25                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: The owner would
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          2  know exactly. I know that they are in there, there

          3  may be other tenants as well, but it's being

          4  utilized by other than the City.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: So, you're

          6  only going for 112,000 square feet, and you wouldn't

          7  be looking for any additional square footage there

          8  in the future, if it should become available?

          9                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: Well, if some

         10  space became available to us, but I don't think

         11  we're looking for anything additional, other than

         12  what I just said, the 112.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: I grew up in

         14  this area, I used to ride my bicycle around there,

         15  and it's actually become more of a residential area,

         16  so I'm concerned about the residents who still live

         17  there, lots of my family who still live there. The

         18  entrance that you will be utilizing, is that the

         19  same entrance that Arizona Beverage used?

         20                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: Yes, it is.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: And that's the

         22  only entrance you'll be utilizing?

         23                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: That's the only

         24  entrance to our building.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: And your
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          2  trucks, as opposed to the trucks that Arizona

          3  Beverage used, are they about the same size? Or is

          4  it --

          5                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: They're tractor

          6  trailer trucks, a few are small buses, or a large

          7  bus. I think some of them are larger and some would

          8  be smaller, but they'd be fewer.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: You're saying

         10  it would be smaller you think?

         11                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: Some of the

         12  vehicles would be smaller than the trucks Arizona

         13  used. Though I don't know every vehicle they used.

         14  We have an SUV, we have a few small vehicles, we

         15  have some larger vehicles, tractor trailers, but we

         16  have fewer vehicles than Arizona would have.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: And in

         18  someone's testimony, I don't know who, they

         19  mentioned the proximity to the BQE.

         20                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: I did.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: And do you

         22  know how far that is? Because I thought it was a

         23  pretty substantial distance.

         24                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: It's down

         25  Flushing Avenue.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: I know it's

          3  down Flushing, but it's like several miles --

          4                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: It's a few miles.

          5  It's a few miles down.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: What?

          7                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: But that's close,

          8  that's all right.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Like ten, 20?

         10                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: No, I don't think

         11  it's 20. No, no. It's probably under five. But it's

         12  not that far down. It's just a few miles.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Under five?

         14  Okay, I'm not quite sure it's under five.

         15                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: It is. It is,

         16  yes.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: And that would

         18  be the entrance that you would be utilizing, the

         19  entrance on Flushing Avenue?

         20                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: It's the only

         21  entrance we have. There are several doors there, at

         22  least three or four very large doors. We would use

         23  some for egress, some for ingress.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Well, there's

         25  also an entrance down by Kingsland Avenue.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: That's not the

          3  property we're leasing. That's not involved with us.

          4                 That's the only entrance, just off

          5  Flushing Avenue.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Mm-hmm. No,

          7  but I'm talking about the entrance. There's another

          8  entrance to the BQE over by Kingsland Avenue.

          9                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: Yes. But we would

         10  not -- are you talking about entrance to the BQE?

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Yes.

         12                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: How would we

         13  enter? Well, it would depend on where we were going,

         14  but we would likely, if we're coming toward our

         15  building, or toward Manhattan, we would enter on

         16  Flushing, if we were going further out to Queens, we

         17  would enter the Expressway going the other

         18  direction.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: And you said

         20  the entrance was on Flushing Avenue, and you will

         21  not be adding any additional entrance or exits to

         22  this current location; is that correct?

         23                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: No, we're not

         24  adding any entrances.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Okay, thank
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          2  you.

          3                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: Okay.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Let me just

          5  follow-up for a moment. The equipment that you're

          6  storing here you consider to be essential in the

          7  case of an emergency. I mean, you have your office

          8  space, because a lot of people I think are asking

          9  questions about your two different spaces. The City

         10  Council approved previously space for you at Cadman

         11  Plaza, and that's where your headquarters is going

         12  to be.

         13                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: That's our

         14  office.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: And we learned in

         16  9/11 the importance of you having a site that in the

         17  case of an attack would be intact. So, that's where

         18  your main office headquarters will be.

         19                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: Absolutely.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Separate from

         21  that, it's my understanding this will be your only

         22  facility in the City; is that correct? Your only

         23  facility that would warehouse items that you would

         24  think are critical in the case of an emergency; is

         25  that correct?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: Yes, it's our

          3  only warehouse. We do have a back-up emergency

          4  operations center, which we don't disclose the

          5  location of, but there is another back-up site.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: And your back-up

          7  site is for you to work out of, or where you would

          8  have the supplies that would be needed?

          9                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: No. No supplies.

         10  It's where we would work out of.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: So this is the

         12  one site that you're looking at in the City of New

         13  York to have things like food, water, lights,

         14  tractors, toilets, Port-O-Jons, tractor trailers,

         15  what have you.

         16                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: Right.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: In the case of an

         18  emergency, either here in the City or I think you

         19  testified that we've sent people post Katrina, we've

         20  sent people to Oklahoma City. So, this is a critical

         21  facility. This is not an attic.

         22                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: Absolutely, it

         23  is. And I think as I stated in my testimony, we need

         24  to have this to operate OEM. We need those supplies.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Okay.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: These are

          3  critical supplies.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Council Member

          5  Comrie.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Exactly what

          7  is the $3.4 million to be used for?

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FIRESTEIN: I'm

          9  sorry, what?

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Exactly what

         11  -- you say you're investing $3.4 million in capital

         12  improvements, for what exactly?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FIERSTEIN:

         14  They'll be putting in ventilation systems, they'll

         15  be enhancing the floor load capacity, they'll be

         16  shelving, they'll be lighting, some electrical

         17  upgrades. They'll have to put up some walls to

         18  compartmentalize certain areas of the warehouse,

         19  depending on what space, where there are trucks and

         20  where there is equipment.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And this 3.4

         22  million, just to follow-up on something that Carmen

         23  Arroyo woke me up to, because I was really not

         24  thinking about it, I think it was a good catch on

         25  her part, you don't have to sign a restrictive
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          2  covenant for the seven years?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FIERSTEIN: No. We

          4  sign a lease agreement, and we can use these capital

          5  funds, yes.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I think that's

          7  something that the Council needs to look into.

          8                 So, we're spending -- what's the cost

          9  of the Cadman Avenue build out?

         10                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: The Build out of

         11  Cadman Plaza? Approximately $47 million.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Forty-seven

         13  million for a permanent facility?

         14                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: Yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And we're

         16  spending 3.4 million to set up this facility to do a

         17  heavier load capacity, put in air conditioning,

         18  space allocation and making it amenable to load out.

         19                 You said in your testimony,

         20  Commissioner Bruno, that your teams are still going

         21  to be expected to do a six-hour turn-around, so it's

         22  not like they have to access the highways in an

         23  emergency fashion. You said at one point their

         24  requirement is that they must be able to deploy

         25  within six hours of activation for the US&R Team?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: That's the Urban

          3  Search and Rescue Team, they would be deployed

          4  somewhere else in the country, and our

          5  responsibility under our agreement is to have the

          6  team on the road in six hours from the time we get

          7  orders to have them go.

          8                 With regard to going on to, more

          9  quickly onto the expressway or wherever we had to

         10  go, taking our regular supplies out to an emergency

         11  that's occurring, we would do that as quickly as

         12  possible. So, if we had a fire or a collapse and we

         13  needed material to deal with that, we would bring

         14  that as quickly as possible.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Oh, okay. So,

         16  you're using it for two different operations?

         17                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: Right. New York

         18  City has an Urban Search and Rescue Team.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay. And then

         20  how would that be developed then? You would have

         21  people that would come to the site as necessary,

         22  depending on the emergency?

         23                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: Right. When we

         24  are deployed, all of our Urban Search and Rescue

         25  members are New York City police officers and ESU
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          2  units, New York City firefighters, and rescue units

          3  and EMS rescue personnel, they would be advised

          4  immediately to report to the warehouse and to be

          5  deployed from there.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And what is

          7  your expected turn around on that type of --

          8                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: That's a six-hour

          9  turn around. That is a six-hour turn around.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: The emergency

         11  turn around, what is the expected --

         12                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: As quickly as we

         13  can get out.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.

         15                 So, it's not that you need

         16  necessarily good highway access, you just need to

         17  have good overall management so that you could

         18  deploy your proper personnel in the proper time.

         19                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: Yes. We might

         20  need the highway to get to where we have to go,

         21  right. We don't need to be right next to it.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I just know

         23  that, for me, I tend to -- I drive through the

         24  Council Member's district every day as my alternate

         25  route into the City, and Flushing Avenue is a mess
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          2  now, especially during rush hour. It's highly

          3  congested. I prefer to take DeKalb or Park. Park is

          4  not easy to maneuver either. Both both are much

          5  easier to maneuver than Flushing Avenue or Bushwick

          6  Avenue, especially during the rush hour periods. I

          7  don't think that that's a great location for an

          8  emergency movement because you get into bottlenecks,

          9  at Arion and Melrose, you get into bottlenecks at

         10  Bushwick and Flushing, that they run right through.

         11  I remember when I picked her up to come in when the

         12  Transit strike was going on, it took us 45 minutes

         13  to get from her district to the Bridge. So, I don't

         14  know that this is the greatest location either, but

         15  I'll move on from there.

         16                 Did anyone in the Administration see

         17  the plan that was developed by the Council Member

         18  for the economic development project?

         19                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: I haven't seen

         20  it.

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FIERSTEIN: I have

         22  not seen it.

         23                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: I don't know

         24  whether other people in the Administration have seen

         25  it.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay. It seems

          3  like there's an extensive plan here to do a major

          4  economic development retail housing and affordable

          5  housing plan, the retail here, this is something

          6  that seemingly has been, a lot of thought has been

          7  put into, and from my understanding, the

          8  Assemblymember especially is one of the preeminent

          9  planners for urban housing and redevelopment in the

         10  City, and to negate it, you know, I have to echo,

         11  when I heard the words that the City may not approve

         12  anything else, but I also took some umbrage that,

         13  because knowing the track record of Assemblymember

         14  Lopez and the desire and the passion that Council

         15  Member Reyna has put into this process, to just

         16  dismiss this project in an area that frankly, every

         17  time I look at, there are cranes and development,

         18  for hiring, to do opportunity for affordable

         19  housing, and affordable retail in that area, to

         20  create jobs is something I don't think should be

         21  dismissed that easily.

         22                 But I think I pretty much made my

         23  point. I'm not crazy about this site as total

         24  accessibility to traffic. I think that the 3.4

         25  million that is being spent by the City could be
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          2  better spent at a permanent location, and I'm very

          3  much concerned that the City has two policies when

          4  it comes to spending City dollars, where on private

          5  property where the City can spend it, and not have

          6  to do a covenant, whereas other people have to go

          7  through hoops and bounds and all kinds of different

          8  problems to utilize City money to enhance the

          9  betterment of the City.

         10                 So, thank you, Madam Chair.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Commissioner, you

         12  testified that this is an ideal facility, and

         13  Council Member Comrie just raised some issues, so

         14  can you quickly speak to that?

         15                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: Sure.

         16                 The Councilman, of course, is

         17  presuming that the only time we would deploy is

         18  during rush hour. Even if we did, we are as much

         19  aware of the traffic patterns in the City as anyone

         20  else, and we would deploy our people as best needed.

         21  If we needed to, we are emergency service vehicles,

         22  if we had to we would be able to clear by using our

         23  local police to come in, if we had to. Certainly if

         24  we had to go to an emergency in New York City, we do

         25  that all the time.
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          2                 Much of the time I'm sure we would

          3  not be deploying at precisely 5:00 or at times when

          4  there's traffic. There's traffic in the entire City.

          5  We go to emergencies at 5:00 in the afternoon in

          6  Manhattan when you have bumper to bumper traffic. We

          7  get there. We have the finest emergency service

          8  people in the world, certainly in the country. And

          9  I'm not concerned about that.

         10                 We were talking about by being close

         11  to large roads like the BQE and interstates, is that

         12  if we had to go in a deployment out of New York, to

         13  deploy, that's where we'd want to be close enough,

         14  and a few miles is not far. If we have to get

         15  somewhere else in the City, we're going to deploy to

         16  the Bronx or into Manhattan, or to Queens, the

         17  interstates and larger roads help us to get there.

         18                 We are emergency service personnel. I

         19  appreciate all the conversation that's going on

         20  here, and I respect it, but in the end, OEM is an

         21  agency that has a mission. We need to have a

         22  warehouse. We think this is one that works, and we

         23  think that we've taken the steps that will allow for

         24  development.

         25                 I recognize we're spending some money
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          2  on it, but it's an important program. That's why the

          3  City is doing that. The City is spending money on

          4  this for this lease because they want to have OEM in

          5  a spot where it has to be able to get to where it

          6  has to go and not in the flood zone.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Here's what we're

          8  going to do, we're going to take a follow-up from

          9  Council Member Palma, and then give Council Member

         10  Reyna the last word, before we hear from the next

         11  panel which includes the landlord, we're going to

         12  vote on the high school that was in Council Member

         13  Martinez's district.

         14                 So, with that, Council Member Palma.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Thank you,

         16  Madam Chair. I believe you answered by follow-up

         17  question. I was going to ask is this the only

         18  warehouse in the City, then it will service the rest

         19  of the boroughs, so if every other borough also had

         20  something similar to that.

         21                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: That would be the

         22  only warehouse. It's beneficial, it's closer to our

         23  headquarters where we would deploy people out of

         24  quickly.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Thank you,
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          2  Madam Chair.

          3                 Commissioner, I think my colleagues

          4  have questioned, you know, every possible item that

          5  perhaps contributes to exactly what my sentiments

          6  have been communicated to you over these past four

          7  months, five now, and, you know, having said that, I

          8  have one final question. You know, you've mentioned

          9  how your personnel would be able to be deployed with

         10  equipment from this site, if you were to occupy it

         11  with emergency status, and so in my mind I can

         12  envision the speed that these folks would have to

         13  maneuver, and I'm thinking to myself what is the

         14  safety precautions of the people who live in the

         15  immediate area. And I'm not just talking about three

         16  blocks away, I'm talking about across the street

         17  there is people that live, right beside this

         18  facility people live there, new home owners, new

         19  families, and if in case of an emergency, what would

         20  happen to the area?

         21                 For instance, we're still dealing

         22  with the aftermath of 9/11 closing down Park Row and

         23  we have yet to see it open. Does that mean that

         24  we're going to lock in all these residents if there

         25  is an emergency and OEM has to operate with strict
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          2  entry and exit?

          3                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: No.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: You know,

          5  there's more that needs to be expressed here. We

          6  can't do it all in one hearing, I understand, but

          7  these are, you know, we're talking about legitimate

          8  concern, legitimate goals, you know, a future that

          9  goes beyond you or I being in government, that we

         10  want to be able to ensure and leave behind for the

         11  people of this district.

         12                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: I understand

         13  that. We operate a Fire Department, I was the Fire

         14  Commissioner in the 1980s, around '87 to '90, I was

         15  First Deputy for three years before that, we

         16  operated fire apparatus between buildings on streets

         17  and they're great. These are emergency service

         18  vehicles. Our vehicles will never be running with

         19  that type of speed. We're not fire vehicles. We will

         20  be bringing equipment to the scene. But we have

         21  emergency response status, so if we have to clear a

         22  street of traffic, we would be able to do that

         23  simply by activating lights, if we had to.

         24                 There is no anticipation that we

         25  would be locking down any area there, because most
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          2  times if we would go to the warehouse, we would be

          3  taking equipment to go somewhere else in the City.

          4                 If there's an emergency in your area,

          5  then that's the same as any emergency that might

          6  occur, a fire. If you have a fire, the Fire

          7  Department comes in.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: You have one

          9  today. This morning.

         10                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: We understand

         11  that. And that area was blocked off.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Secured.

         13                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: But that's what

         14  you want. You don't not want that. You want that.

         15  You want the Fire Department to come in, Police

         16  Department to come in --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: But I'm not

         18  referring to the destination. I'm referring to your

         19  actual deployment area.

         20                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: Our deployment

         21  will not mandate us doing anything other than coming

         22  out of that and going to where we have to go.

         23                 We are not first responders in that

         24  respect. We are not firefighters or police officers.

         25  We are going to support, coordinate them. And so you
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          2  should not anticipate we're going to be running out

          3  of there with lights and sirens, if we ever do any.

          4  We'll come out with our vehicles, head toward where

          5  we have to go. If we believe we're blocked, we'll

          6  find an alternate way. If we cannot, we will use

          7  whatever lights we have to, traffic move aside, as

          8  police and fire do, and then we will go to where we

          9  have to go.

         10                 You should not anticipate that. There

         11  are other reasons why you are opposing this, but

         12  that's not one thing I think is an issue you should

         13  worry about.

         14                 We will be part of the overall

         15  response mechanism of the City. We are not the first

         16  responders. We come in and support the first

         17  responders.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: And, again, as

         19  I have mentioned to you in the past, we welcome OEM

         20  into our district. We would love to find you another

         21  site other than this one. This is not the ideal site

         22  for a warehousing use where we can see the

         23  development of mixed use to provide essential

         24  services that perhaps you have in your own

         25  neighborhood, that you can perhaps count on, that in
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          2  our neighborhood we've yet to see. And in order to

          3  get there, we need the support of the City, and for

          4  the last five years I've dedicated in asking every

          5  budget hearing we've had about this site. You

          6  perhaps very well know Mr. Wolf purchased this site

          7  three years ago. This was fairly recent. And this

          8  was built with IDA bonds in the eighties. Went

          9  bankrupt. It was supposed to provide job

         10  opportunities for local residents, and didn't do

         11  that. And now, as a current Council member, having

         12  grown up in that area, I'd like to go back to the

         13  time when we could count on potential employment

         14  opportunities in our area. There is a limited

         15  number, and in order to start igniting that, we have

         16  to start somewhere.

         17                 Commissioner Walsh himself when

         18  touring this area mentioned this would be the anchor

         19  site. This would be the site that would ignite any

         20  type of economic development expansion.

         21                 And so, I understand that you have

         22  not seen, nor have I shared the plans, with you as

         23  far as OEM is concerned --

         24                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: Right.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: -- But it is a
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          2  City Planning issue, as you had pointed out, that

          3  perhaps may or may not be disapproved by City

          4  Planning. But I can assure you that City Planning is

          5  aware of this particular interest, because the

          6  property owner has already communicated with them.

          7                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: Okay.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: I am eager to

          9  see a solution, working with you in identifying a

         10  second site. And we welcome you, but not at 930

         11  Flushing Avenue. And I hope that you can see from

         12  the excellent questions that were raised here, the

         13  restrictive covenants is perhaps one of the most

         14  recent shedding of light to this issue, as to how

         15  OEM would be the exception of a restrictive

         16  covenants, despite the fact that there's $3.5

         17  million being invested in a non-City-owned property.

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FIERSTEIN: To

         19  that point, OMB is working on a response to that

         20  question right now, which you'll have shortly.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Fantastic.

         22                 And I hope that OMB recognizes that

         23  there's only a seven-year lease being proposed here.

         24                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: They do. They do.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Therefore, is
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          2  this going to be a new opportunity for let's say a

          3  senior center to receive the same benefit, so that

          4  if there is a restrictive covenants, that it's not

          5  going to be, you know, the 20, 30, 40 year

          6  restrictive covenants, instead of a seven-year,

          7  which perhaps I'm assuming OMB will come back and

          8  say there is a restrictive covenants of seven years

          9  to collaborate with your efforts to allow the use of

         10  the warehousing that you look forward to seeing at

         11  930 Flushing Avenue.

         12                 I know that we're not voting here

         13  today. I want to thank Madam Chair for giving me the

         14  opportunity to just put some perspective into what

         15  you have proposed to this Committee, and I thank my

         16  colleagues for taking that time to ask you

         17  questions.

         18                 You know, it's not too often that

         19  we're able to digest and take into consideration

         20  what's being proposed to us. But I know that I did

         21  my due diligence in informing of the facts my

         22  colleagues so that they could be prepared here

         23  today. And, so, by no means has this been a session

         24  to make it difficult for you but rather to be as

         25  well aware of what's in front of us, as opposed to
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          2  trying to make a decision based on five minutes'

          3  worth of information.

          4                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: I appreciate the

          5  opportunity to be here. I understand the questions,

          6  and I don't expect to come here and people just say

          7  what we're doing is great. People have concerns, and

          8  I think you've raised those concerns. I think we've

          9  tried to meet some of those with the lease term, and

         10  if that doesn't do it for you, I understand that.

         11  And I respect everything that's been said here. I

         12  respect your position on it.

         13                 I don't think we've taken a very

         14  difficult position with you personally in any way.

         15                 We need a site. It's important. This

         16  site fits what we need. I thought that the change in

         17  the lease term would be helpful. And maybe it will

         18  be, if, in fact, you all think about it, it might

         19  be. If it is, good. If it isn't, OEM still needs to

         20  have a site. It needs to have a warehouse. This is

         21  not an agency that will just be, well, you won't

         22  have it.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: I agree with

         24  you, Commissioner.

         25                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: We need to have
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          2  it.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: I agree with

          4  you, Commissioner. That's exactly what we're trying

          5  to tell you.

          6                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: We looked at 45

          7  sites. We looked at all the ones you gave us.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: It would be

          9  great to go back to the drawing board and get a

         10  permanent site, rather than depending on a temporary

         11  one. If in fact, we are talking about temporary.

         12                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: I hope the

         13  enthusiasm will continue, if this is not successful.

         14                 Thank you very much.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Am I to assume

         16  that that remark is telling me that --

         17                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: Help us.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: -- A City

         19  Planning application won't be approved if rezoning

         20  is going to be sought out?

         21                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: I don't know why

         22  you say things like that. I have no idea what you're

         23  talking about when you say that. I have nothing to

         24  do with the City Planning Commission.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: My enthusiasm
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          2  will continue.

          3                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: If, in fact, we

          4  don't get this site, we will need as much help as we

          5  can to find a site. New York City needs to have it.

          6  OEM needs to have a headquarters and needs to have a

          7  warehouse to house this important equipment.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: I will walk the

          9  streets of New York with you --

         10                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: Thank you.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: -- To look for

         12  that second site.

         13                 COMMISSIONER BRUNO: Okay, we have

         14  this one on the table. I hope that it will be

         15  approved.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you very

         17  much for coming to testify.

         18                 Just for your information,

         19  Commissioners, the Subcommittee is going to

         20  reconvene on Wednesday, May 10th, at 9:30 in the

         21  morning. The full Land Use Committee will meet at

         22  9:45 to vote on this item, and we appreciate you

         23  coming. Thank you very much for coming to testify.

         24                 Before we move just to the next

         25  panel, I want to quickly ask the Counsel to call for
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          2  a vote on Land Use Item No. 124.

          3                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Chair Lappin.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: I vote aye.

          5                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

          6  Barron.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Aye.

          8                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

          9  Comrie.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Aye.

         11                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         12  Liu.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Yes.

         14                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         15  Palma.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Aye.

         17                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         18  Arroyo.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: Aye.

         20                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         21  Mendez.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Yes.

         23                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: By a vote of

         24  seven in the affirmative, none in the negative, and

         25  no abstentions, the aforementioned items are
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          2  approved and referred to the full Committee.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you.

          4                 And now if we could hear from Mr.

          5  Wolf, Mr. Klein, Mr. Fullington and Mr. Levine.

          6                 MR. WOLF: Good afternoon. My name is

          7  Robert Wolf. I'm a principal in Read Property Group,

          8  and we are the owners of the industrial property

          9  proposed to be leased to the City Office of

         10  Emergency Management.

         11                 Our building at 930 Flushing is

         12  approximately 300,000 square foot. It' a warehouse

         13  and distribution building. 100,000 square foot is

         14  currently vacant since September of last year. The

         15  remaining 200,000 square foot are leased to three

         16  tenants, AMR, an ambulance company, it's a public

         17  company, Primary 1, which is a health and beauty aid

         18  company, and Guff International (phonetic), a toy

         19  manufacturer, or whatever, distributor. All leases

         20  are set to expire on the same day, October 31st,

         21  2013, seven years from now, and it was done on

         22  purpose that way, hoping that the area will evolve

         23  and the opportunity to gather different use. I'm

         24  looking forward to working with Council Member Reyna

         25  and her Chief of Staff to rezone the site, but this
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          2  is going to take several years, in the meantime, I

          3  have 100,000 square foot vacant. I cannot carry my

          4  mortgage with a third of my building vacant. The

          5  other lease expires in seven years, there's nothing

          6  I can do about it. So, therefore, for the next seven

          7  years we need a tenant.

          8                 Office of Emergency Management is the

          9  ideal tenant. They agreed to a clause in the lease

         10  whereby in seven years from now we have an option to

         11  cancel this lease and therefore, we'll be able to

         12  work over the next several years to get their

         13  rezoning, to find appropriate tenants and go ahead

         14  and do the retail development which definitely will

         15  enhance the property, the value of our property.

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Anybody else want

         18  to make a statement? Okay.

         19                 So, OEM would occupy the space that

         20  Arizona is currently in? Or have they already

         21  vacated?

         22                 MR. WOLF: They vacated in September.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: In September of

         24  two thousand and?

         25                 MR. WOLF: Five.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Five, okay.

          3                 And the other three tenants all have

          4  leases that expire on 2013.

          5                 Have you been working with Council

          6  Member Reyna on a rezoning proposal?

          7                 MR. WOLF: Yes. We met twice with

          8  Councilwoman Reyna, and I spoke to her Chief of

          9  Staff. We have a meeting with some of the

         10  consultants that she brought on the project, and

         11  we're looking forward to work together.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: So your issue is

         13  that you have space available, you don't think you

         14  can pay your mortgage unless you can rent the space.

         15  You have three other tenants who have leases that

         16  expire in 2013. And you are willing to continue to

         17  work with Council Member Reyna to rezone this, to

         18  bring potential other mixed use into this space?

         19                 MR. WOLF: Definitely.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Okay.

         21                 Council Member Reyna, do you have any

         22  questions?

         23                 Are there any Committee members that

         24  have questions?

         25                 Council Member Palma.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: OEM have

          3  approached already so they can lease the site?

          4                 MR. WOLF: Excuse me? I didn't get

          5  you.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: OEM, they

          7  already -- they gave you a proposal so they can

          8  lease the site?

          9                 MR. WOLF: Yes.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Prior to that

         11  you were on board to go with the plan to the

         12  rezoning for the mixed use?

         13                 MR. WOLF: Absolutely not.

         14                 What happens is, is that OEM preceded

         15  this whole discussion with Council Member Reyna.

         16  They approached us a year ago, more than a year ago,

         17  and we have been working with them on the plans and

         18  spent time on developing an appropriate lease with

         19  OEM.

         20                 The rezoning of this property was

         21  brought up at a meeting with Councilwoman Reyna, and

         22  we are for it, but this is a long process. This is

         23  not something that happens overnight. In the

         24  meantime, you cannot carry a vacant building. So,

         25  OEM is just as good as any other tenant who would
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          2  come and lease space there for the next seven years.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: As a follow-up,

          4  if OEM didn't take this space, for whatever reason,

          5  would you lease to another tenant potentially?

          6                 MR. WOLF: Council Member Comrie.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: How many

          8  warehouses are in that particular area?

          9                 MR. WOLF: Sorry, I didn't get your

         10  question.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: How many other

         12  warehouses are in that particular area?

         13                 MR. WOLF: There's a warehouse

         14  building behind us, and then along Flushing Avenue

         15  there's many warehouses, all along Flushing, by

         16  Bushwick.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: How did you

         18  market the property so that OEM found it?

         19                 MR. WOLF: We were approached by CB

         20  Richard Ellis.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Who is?

         22                 MR. WOLF: Who is the leasing agent

         23  for OEM, and they inquired about the potential

         24  tenant for this site, and we showed them the space

         25  and they liked it. It took a long time til they came
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          2  down with various members of all their departments.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay. But

          4  wouldn't you derive more income from this plan that

          5  I'm looking at here where you could develop this

          6  three-story retail housing and some other commercial

          7  retail down the line?

          8                 MR. WOLF: Yes, I would.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay. All

         10  right.

         11                 MR. WOLF: But I cannot do it for

         12  seven years. So, in the meantime --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Timing is

         14  relative. If you had the force and the power of the

         15  Mayor's Office behind you, trying to make sure that

         16  we build affordable housing, I think that it would

         17  happen a lot quicker than seven years. But that's to

         18  be debated at another time.

         19                 I would hope that the City does still

         20  try to lease to make sure that the rest of the

         21  property is moved along because I think that this

         22  is, again, a very positive plan for that area, to

         23  transform an area where you have mostly vacant and

         24  low-use industrial property into a vibrant

         25  commercial and residential area.
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          2                 So, I would hope that you do not stop

          3  your development, and I hope that the City is not

          4  disencouraging you from moving forward as quickly as

          5  possible.

          6                 MR. WOLF: The site that exists of a

          7  larger portion, which two blocks are right now

          8  vacant land, and we are going ahead and developing

          9  into a retail and housing development, and as soon

         10  as this property is vacated, and before that, this

         11  is a multi-year process, we will go ahead and do

         12  exactly what Councilwoman Reyna wants to do. That's

         13  in our interest. Yes, it's more valuable to us.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: All right.

         15  Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Council Member

         17  Arroyo.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: So, given the

         19  statement that you just made, it's very likely that

         20  the Office of Emergency Management will be looking

         21  for another site in seven years, because your

         22  long-term plan is to develop the site for

         23  residential and commercial?

         24                 MR. WOLF: Yes. If I get approval on

         25  the zoning.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Council Member

          4  Reyna.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Thank you,

          6  Madam Chair.

          7                 Mr. Wolf, good afternoon.

          8                 MR. WOLF: Hi. Hello.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: It's taken a

         10  long while to identify who the property owner of

         11  this site was, and when I came across your name, I

         12  was elated.

         13                 Five years ago I started asking about

         14  the site. I asked EDC. No one knew. No one

         15  understood what I was talking about. And

         16  year-after-year I asked intergovernmental, no one

         17  ever knew. And all of a sudden because OEM wants to

         18  move in, now there is all of a sudden an

         19  understanding and an awareness of 930 Flushing

         20  Avenue.

         21                 The intent, and we never spoke before

         22  our first conversation, when we initiated our

         23  conversation, you began to show me a map of your

         24  area and what exactly is it that you are the

         25  property owner of. I was astounded. Not only is it
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          2  the Madame Moiselle Factory area, but it's also

          3  everything before it along Flushing Avenue. Vacant

          4  land. There's a proposal of seven different sites

          5  for developments, of which you've identified by

          6  building letters, A through -- I have M here, but

          7  it's really A through L and then there's Building M.

          8  And the intention is to create mixed use. It's a

          9  shame to feel right now as an elected official that

         10  not moving ahead with OEM moving in, and their

         11  implication of having accommodated my concerns by

         12  shortening a lease to ten years with the option to

         13  leave in seven, that City Planning may not accept

         14  your application.

         15                 Have you included in your application

         16  process, because I know that you've mapped this out.

         17  I know you've spoken to City Planning, have you

         18  submitted an application to include all these sites,

         19  including the Madame Moiselle site?

         20                 MR. LEVINE: Council Member Reyna --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Please give

         22  your name.

         23                 MR. LEVINE: Yes, of course. My name

         24  is Mark Levine. I'm a partner at Herrick Feinstein.

         25  I've been working with the Read Property Company now
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          2  for I guess four or five months in reviewing this

          3  site.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Mm-hmm.

          5                 MR. LEVINE: First, no application has

          6  been filed. We've had discussions with the staff of

          7  City Planning, with your office, with others you

          8  mentioned, but no application has been filed because

          9  it's very preliminary.

         10                 The site plan that you discussed is

         11  one of a variety potential reuses of the property --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Mm-hmm.

         13                 MR. LEVINE: And as I think you know

         14  very well, this process is, as Mr. Wolf said, a

         15  multi-year process.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Can I just

         17  interrupt you there?

         18                 MR. LEVINE: Sure. Of course.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: When you say

         20  multi-year, are you talking about the development is

         21  multi-year?

         22                 MR. LEVINE: No. I'm talking about

         23  what we call the pre-ULURP process and then ULURP

         24  process.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: I have seen
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          2  things in this City of New York, as an elected

          3  official, go through a process in less than 18

          4  months.

          5                 MR. LEVINE: Well, I would love to see

          6  that happen, as well.

          7                 It's been my experience that that's a

          8  rare exception, with all respect, Council Member

          9  Reyna.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: And in rare

         11  exceptions, when the City is in full approval of it?

         12                 MR. LEVINE: I would assume that

         13  certainly with the City's full support.

         14                 But nevertheless, it is a

         15  time-consuming process because as you know, the

         16  environmental process is elaborate and must be

         17  complied with, and all of the pre-ULURP requirements

         18  of the variety of City agencies just ends up taking

         19  time.

         20                 But clearly, 18 months is quick. It's

         21  been my experience that it's, frankly, longer. And

         22  we are at the very early part of that process, and

         23  this is a very large site, as you indicated. It's

         24  multi-parcels, it's a mixed use process and a

         25  project and --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: What stops --

          3  I'm sorry. What stops, you being the representative

          4  of the property owner, and the property owner

          5  submitting an application?

          6                 MR. LEVINE: City Planning won't allow

          7  you to submit an application until the preliminary

          8  work is finished. The environmental work has to be

          9  finished, more detailed plans have to be done, lots

         10  of discussions with community representatives, local

         11  neighborhood groups, all of the kinds of things that

         12  are part of the ULURP process has to be undertaken

         13  before City Planning allows you to make that

         14  application.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: How long ago

         16  did preliminary discussions begin, to get to the

         17  point where plans have been drawn?

         18                 MR. LEVINE: Several months. I mean,

         19  these are very --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: What?

         21                 MR. LEVINE: Several months.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Several months

         23  as in since 2005? Since 2004?

         24                 MR. LEVINE: No, no. Several months.

         25  I've been involved in this project, I guess --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Fairly

          3  recently, since --

          4                 MR. LEVINE: -- Four or five months.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Right. Since

          6  January.

          7                 MR. LEVINE: Right.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Since OEM

          9  became a problem.

         10                 MR. LEVINE: No. I think that I've

         11  been involved in this project since the latter part

         12  of 2005, so maybe it's six months. But it's a very

         13  time-consuming process. I wish it was faster,

         14  frankly, because you sometimes miss the market and

         15  you have to come back and wait.

         16                 There are a lot of implications. But

         17  we are most anxious to move as quickly as possible.

         18                 What you have is a drawing prepared

         19  by an architect as to some potential uses of the

         20  property. It does then have to be tested. Is it

         21  appropriate to have this height building on this

         22  site, as opposed to another site, and that's the

         23  kind of process that City Planning requires you to

         24  go through before an application is formally

         25  submitted.
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          2                 And, of course, simultaneously we're

          3  doing the environmental work that is necessary under

          4  the City and State's environmental statutes.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Would you agree

          6  or disagree that you have perhaps an advantage

          7  considering that adjacent to all this property, the

          8  Rhinegold Renaissance has done all of this work in

          9  the last five years to, therefore, give you sort of

         10  a jumpstart.

         11                 MR. LEVINE: Well, clearly that

         12  project has been extremely successful. We're very

         13  pleased that it's been so successful, and we're

         14  trying to build on that success. So, of course it's

         15  been helpful to have that project go through.

         16                 But as you know probably far better

         17  than I, that Rhinegold site sat vacant for over 20

         18  years.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Mm-hmm.

         20                 MR. LEVINE: It was a site that

         21  couldn't get started, and we're fortunate enough --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: And once it

         23  did, it flew.

         24                 MR. LEVINE: We are fortunate enough

         25  to be living in a city today where the population is
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          2  increasing, where all neighborhoods are available

          3  for reuse, and we're very pleased to be working in

          4  this neighborhood with you and other members of the

          5  Council, in trying to make this happen. But it takes

          6  a long time.

          7                 You know Rhinegold I think actually

          8  took 25 years before it was --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: No.

         10                 MR. LEVINE: Whatever.

         11                 But it took a very long time. We hope

         12  it won't take anywhere near that long, but one

         13  doesn't really know.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: It didn't take

         15  long at all.

         16                 MR. LEVINE: Okay.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Was that your

         18  final statement?

         19                 MR. LEVINE: Yes. Yes, the Rhinegold

         20  Urban Renewal Area, it's not important, it's quite

         21  an old urban renewal plan. I think it was adopted in

         22  the 1970s. But regardless, we are very pleased to be

         23  working in the neighborhood with you and other

         24  elected officials in trying to make this process and

         25  project go forward.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: So, you're

          3  talking about the urban renewal, rather than the

          4  actual application process in City Planning?

          5                 MR. LEVINE: No, I was explaining that

          6  the Rhinegold Project that Bushwick, Ridgewood

          7  Bushwick undertook, which you asked me about, and

          8  which has finally been completed, as an area was a

          9  very long process in it taking place. And you asked

         10  whether or not that project would be helpful in us

         11  going forward, and the answer is, of course, yes,

         12  we're very pleased that it's there, and we're hoping

         13  to build on that success with a similar kind of

         14  project.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: And you were

         16  referring to an urban --

         17                 MR. LEVINE: It was a long time ago.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Exactly.

         19                 MR. LEVINE: It was a long time ago.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Okay, so now we

         21  know that it's two separate --

         22                 MR. LEVINE: Yes.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Okay.

         24                 I wanted to just continue to just

         25  ask, in moving forward with an application, how have
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          2  you attempted to take into consideration all these

          3  preliminary discussions and apply it so that you're

          4  that much closer to an application being submitted?

          5                 MR. LEVINE: We've retained

          6  environmental consultants who have begun doing the

          7  environmental analysis. We, as you know, have

          8  retained an architect. You have a copy of the very

          9  preliminary drawings that he's prepared.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: There are

         11  several of them.

         12                 MR. LEVINE: Yes. And they continue to

         13  change, because as we learn more, as there is

         14  analysis of traffic and whether or not this is a

         15  good location for a particular building, et cetera,

         16  you learn more.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: And you heard

         18  the City, on behalf of OEM, claiming that this is a

         19  great site for any type of development apparently,

         20  because not just warehousing, because it's, you

         21  know, anchored in an area with arteries for

         22  transition.

         23                 MR. LEVINE: I look at this site as

         24  you do, as building on the success of the Rhinegold

         25  housing that's already been built.
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          2                 I'm not prepared to comment on good,

          3  bad or indifferent. It's clearly an important area.

          4  It's on a major thoroughfare.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Mm-hmm.

          6                 MR. LEVINE: But what we are in fact

          7  doing is analytically looking at the variety of

          8  things that people are suggesting are good or bad

          9  about the site, and there's some good and there's

         10  some bad. And as we get into the ULURP process, as I

         11  think you know, there is an objective analysis done

         12  that looks at a variety of categories, the number of

         13  schools, police, fire, so that you have an

         14  understanding of what the impact of this whole

         15  proposal is on the area.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: I'm very glad

         17  you mentioned that, because it's funny how we just

         18  approved the Williamsburg Greenpoint rezoning

         19  without any specifics on schools, firehouses,

         20  transportation, and we're going to be building

         21  10,000 units.

         22                 MR. LEVINE: I don't know about that.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Okay.

         24                 Okay, so I guess we're going to be

         25  drawing the end of this hearing, but I just wanted
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          2  to have an open frankness, because I know no other

          3  way, and Mr. Wolf understands that having already

          4  dealt with me, that I am in full support of a

          5  rezoning here. That is unique. Never do you come as

          6  a property owner, and have the challenge that you

          7  have full support for a rezoning. The opposite is

          8  true in this case where the elected official is

          9  pushing the property owner for rezoning, rather than

         10  the other way around.

         11                 Of course, the rezoning is, as you

         12  said, very complicated in the specifics as to what

         13  will end up being developed, and I understand that,

         14  and that's where I look forward to continuing these

         15  discussions, but it will be very difficult, I assure

         16  you, to believe that the City investing $3.5 million

         17  in a warehouse to lease for ten years with the

         18  option of leaving in seven, is true when they have

         19  the capacity of doubling anything they're offering

         20  now in seven years to continue for an additional X

         21  number of years, indefinite number of years.

         22                 And, so, I hope you can appreciate

         23  where my concerns lie looking forward. I am looking

         24  beyond being an elected official. I am looking at

         25  this as a resident. I am looking at this as an
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          2  individual who sees the dire needs of essential

          3  services, who sees the potential. And I know that

          4  you see that as well, but you're caught between a

          5  rock and a hard place, and I'm trying to express to

          6  you that we need to work together in ensuring that

          7  there is going to be a cohesive attempt in a win/win

          8  situation, where the City can look for another site,

          9  perhaps within the community. As Mr. Wolf has

         10  already mentioned, there is other warehousing

         11  capacity in the area, but just not on this site. And

         12  let them allow us, by working with us on a rezoning

         13  application, to move ahead.

         14                 Thank you.

         15                 MR. LEVINE: Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you. Thank

         17  you very much.

         18                 Seeing nobody else here to testify,

         19  this hearing is closed and the meeting adjourned.

         20  Thank you. Recessed. My apologies, meeting is

         21  recessed until Wednesday, May 10th at 9:30 a.m.)

         22

         23

         24

         25

                                                            112

          1

          2              CERTIFICATION
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          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter, do hereby certify that the

         11  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         12  within proceeding.

         13                 I further certify that I am not

         14  related to any of the parties to this action by

         15  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         16  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         17                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         18  set my hand this 2nd day of May 2006.
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          9            I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified Shorthand

         10  Reporter and a Notary Public in and for the State of

         11  New York, do hereby certify the aforesaid to be a

         12  true and accurate copy of the transcription of the

         13  audio tapes of this hearing.

         14

         15

         16

         17

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24                 -----------------------

                              CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.

         25

